
Y Pwyllgor Plant a Phobl Ifanc 
 

Lleoliad: 
Ystafell Bwyllgora 1 - y Senedd 

 

 

 

Dyddiad: 
Dydd Iau, 13 Mehefin 2013  

 

Amser: 
09:30 

 

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch â:  
 
Deddfwriaeth: Steve George  
Clerc Deddfwriaeth 
Polisi: Claire Morris 
Clerc y Pwyllgor 
029 2089 8148 / 029 2089 8242 
PwyllgorPPI@cymru.gov.uk  

  

 

Agenda 
 

 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon   

2 Y Bil Addysg Bellach ac Uwch (Llywodraethu a Gwybodaeth) 
(Cymru): Cyfnod 1 – Sesiwn dystiolaeth 6  (Tudalennau 1 - 3)  
Tyst: Sgiliau Adeiladu Cymru  

 

Tystion: 

 

- Gareth Williams, Rheolwr Gyrfaoedd a Chymwysterau CITB Cymru/Wales 

 

Dogfennau atodol: 

CYP(4)-18-13(p1) - Sgiliau Adeiladu Cymru 

  

3 Y Bil Addysg Bellach ac Uwch (Llywodraethu a Gwybodaeth) 
(Cymru): Cyfnod 1 – Sesiwn dystiolaeth 7  (Tudalennau 4 - 7)  

Tyst: Addysg Uwch Cymru (AUC) 

 

- Yr Athro April McMahon, Is-Ganghellor Prifysgol Aberystwyth 

- Yr Athro Medwin Hughes, Is-Ganghellor Prifysgol Cymru y Drindod Dewi Sant a 

Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus



Phrifysgol Fetropolitan Abertawe Prifysgol Cymru y Drindod Dewi Sant a Phrifysgol 

Cymru 

- Mr Ben Arnold, Cynghorydd Polisi, Addysg Uwch Cymru 

 

Dogfennau atodol: 

CYP(4)-18-13(p2) Addysg Uwch Cymru 

  

4 Papurau i'w nodi  (Tudalennau 8 - 24)  
Dogfennau atodol: 
 
CYP(4)-18-13 (p3) - Ymatebion i'r ymgynghoriad 
 
http://www.senedd.cynulliadcymru.org/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=6772 
 
CYP(4)-18-13 (p4) – Colegau: Ailddosbarthu (Gwybodaeth ychwanegol – UCU) 
CYP(4)-18-13 (p5) – Barn bellach (Gwybodaeth ychwanegol – UCU) 
CYP(4)-18-13 (p6) - Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau, Llywodraeth Cymru 
 

5 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y 
cyhoedd o'r cyfarfod ar gyfer y busnes a ganlyn    

Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42(ix) a (viii) i benderfynu gwahardd y cyhoedd o’r 

cyfarfod ar gyfer y busnes a ganlyn: 

 

Eitem 6 o’r agenda hwn ac eitem 1 o agenda’r cyfarfod a gynhelir ar 19 Mehefin 

2013 
  

6 Y Bil Addysg Bellach ac Uwch (Llywodraethu a Gwybodaeth) 
(Cymru): Trafod tystiolaeth heddiw    

Eitem 6 

Sesiwn breifat 

 
  



                                                                         

1 

 

 

National Assembly for Wales, Children and Young People Committee  

 Consultation on the  

Further and Higher Education (Governance and Information) (Wales) Bill 

Written Comments from CITB Cymru Wales (Construction Industry Training 

Board 

 

1. Introduction 

1.1 

CITB is a social enterprise, devoted to building competitive advantage for the construction 

industry and the people who work in it ensuring that Individuals have the skills to compete for 

the best jobs and develop fulfilling careers.  That companies have a highly skilled workforce 

that gives them a USP in their sector.  The industry has the skills to meet its clients’ needs 

and future challenges.  That UK plc has an industry that is world class and can compete with 

the best on the world stage.  CITB Cymru Wales retains its role as a lead partner in 

ConstructionSkills as an SSC serving Construction.  At the Committee’s invitation, CITB 

Cymru Wales will be giving oral evidence to the Children and Young People Committee on 13 

June 2013.  The following written comments are submitted in support of this.  

 

2. Context 

 

2.1  

The Welsh Government published its White Paper on the Further and Higher Education 

(Wales) Bill in July 2012 setting out proposals for legislative reform relating to both the 

Further Education (FE) and Higher Education (HE) sectors in Wales. The outcome of the 

consultation was two-fold: (a) the Further and Higher Education (Governance and 

Information) (Wales) Bill, which was laid before the National Assembly for Wales on 29 

April 2013, and (b) the Higher Education (Wales) Bill consultation document, which was 

published on 20 May 2013. The main proposals in relation to higher education were set 

out in the latter, which is currently under consultation until 29 July 2013.  The Further & 

Higher Education (Governance and Information) (Wales) Bill primarily set out proposals in 

relation to Further Education.  Two provisions in particular, however, were of relevance to 

higher education: Section 7 (deregulation of student numbers) and Section 9 (information 

supply).  HEW’s comments accordingly focus on these two provisions and the more 

general implications for higher education arising from these proposals. 

 

3. Responses to the recommendations.  

HE Reform  

3.1 The recommendation that the Welsh Government is committed to developing a strategic 
and forward thinking HE sector in Wales which will form a stronger part of both society 
and the economy is welcomed as is a recognition that Higher Education has an important 

Eitem 2

Tudalen 1



                                                                         

2 

 

part to play in the up skilling of the Construction Industry within a rapidly changing 
environment and economic climate. 
 

3.2 The recommendation that  ministers wish to create a system of HE which consists of 
fewer, stronger HEIs able both to compete internationally in terms of research and 
student experience and to develop an internationally competitive economy around them 
needs to be taken in the context of patchy overall provision for the Construction industry 
across Wales with HEI’s offering high quality varied provision in some parts of Wales and 
in other parts of the country such as North and Mid Wales little or limited provision is and 
has historically been available with companies looking to North West England or the 
Midlands for provision.   
 

3.3 The recommendation that an efficient, modern and effective system of governance at 
national and institutional level is central to driving improvement and delivering a dynamic 
and responsive system of HE in Wales to develop competitiveness the needs of a 
modern, knowledge-based, globally competitive economy is welcomed.  It is essential 
that this improved governance model includes a significant input from industry on both a 
regional (local) and national Wales level to ensure that provision meets both identified 
and perceived local needs and that needless duplication is avoided especially is areas 
where a high number of providers operate.   
 

4. Proposals for FE 
 
4.1 The Further Education Sector in Wales has traditionally been an important provider of   

Higher Level Education, mainly at levels 4 and 5 HNC/NHD provision for the Construction 
Sector.  The sector generally has credibility and support amongst employers and has 
shown a willingness to innovate with the development of Foundation Degrees, 
Sustainability and Green Skills provision and part time courses.   
 

4.2 In the light of the above comments it must be stated that Construction provision is 
expensive and that independent control of College Finances could either be a positive or 
negative factor in the maintenance of current provision or development of additional new 
provision depending on the interests of Senior Managers and Governors.  The need for 
well informed and influential representation from the Construction Industry on the new 
revised Governing Bodies of Colleges would be crucial to this success of reform and to 
ensure that ‘expensive’ specialist provision continues and thrives. 
 

4.3 Further Education has a key part to play on the development of Higher Apprenticeships.  
The funding issues which exist with regards to the funding and issue of qualifications at 
level 4 and above as outlined in SASW (Specifications of Apprenticeship Standards 
Wales) potentially put the development of Higher Apprenticeships at risk.  A solution 
which may include devolvement of funding directly to FE requires urgent consideration as 
it is foreseen that skills at these higher levels will be key to driving the industry forward 
post-recession. It is perceived that Construction related courses HE and FE are ‘at risk’ 
across the UK due to the current down turn and cost of provision.  This is potentially 
damaging to the industry’s future 
 

4.4 The comments  that planning and providing professional development for staff  
including developing specialist vocational courses as well as strengthening quality 
assurance and management systems exploring the potential for in-company  
corporate training and the up-skilling workers and technicians are to be welcomed though  
significant challenges remain for the FE sector is balancing the need for economically  
viable specialist provision with college budget restraints as such provision though  
economically important are likely to draw small numbers of participants.  Increased  

Tudalen 2



                                                                         

3 

 

autonomy with a lack of central coordination could lead to a situation where a ‘post code  
lottery’ of provision will exist across Wales which would not benefit industry.   

 
 

5  Provision capping and Planning 

 

      5.1 Accepting the statement ‘Thus the Welsh Government is committed to preserving the  
principle that the state will subsidise HE and maintain opportunities for all. However, in so 
there is a need to control the total cost of HE to the Government’s 
budget. This will be achieved through arrangements to cap the number of 
publicly funded student places in Wales’ the effective planning and implementation of this  
policy will be key to the success of this Bill from the point of view of the industry.  A  
balance will need to be achieved between the provision available and the needs of the  
industry for highly skilled workers.   
 

      5.2 The use of local, national and even international LMI  data and intelligence should be an  
            important part of the planning and capping process.  This process through employer input  
            at the appropriate level in governance can be made more effective and difficult decisions  
            made on the basis of robust information.  Employment and employability should play a  
            key part in this decision making.  
 
      5.3The Welsh Government will therefore seek a provision in the Bill to enable HE provision  
            to be funded directly by Welsh Ministers in instances where it is strategically appropriate  

to do so. By way of example, such a power could be used by the Welsh Government to 
tackle any significant failures to meet identified employer needs and learner demand in 
identified priorities. 

  
 

6. General 

 

Subject to the comments above CITB Cymru Wales recognises and supports the main 

driving principle behind the proposals for deregulation of Further Education institutions to 

allow greater autonomy in the sector and ensure that, for purposes of public accounting, 

they are not regarded as central government.  Though Restructuring the sector alone will 

not solve all provision issues with regards to the Construction Industry in Wales as where 

there are areas of little or no historic provision,  credibility within in industry will take time.  

 

 

CITB Cymru Wales 

June 2013 

 

Tudalen 3



                                                                         

1 

 

National Assembly for Wales, Children and Young People Committee  

 Consultation on the  

Further and Higher Education (Governance and Information) (Wales) Bill 

Written Comments from Higher Education Wales (HEW) 

 

1. Introduction 

 

1.1 Higher Education Wales (HEW) represents the interests of Higher Education Institutions 

(HEIs) in Wales and is a National Council of Universities UK. HEW’s Governing Council 

consists of the Vice-Chancellors of all the HEIs in Wales and the Director of the Open 

University in Wales. At the Committee’s invitation, HEW will be giving oral evidence to the 

Children and Young People Committee on 13 June 2013.  The following written 

comments are submitted in support of this.  

 

2. Context 

 

2.1 The Welsh Government published its White Paper on the Further and Higher Education 

(Wales) Bill in July 2012 setting out proposals for legislative reform relating to both the 

Further Education (FE) and Higher Education (HE) sectors in Wales. The outcome of the 

consultation was two-fold: (a) the Further and Higher Education (Governance and 

Information) (Wales) Bill, which was laid before the National Assembly for Wales on 29 

April 2013, and (b) the Higher Education (Wales) Bill consultation document, which was 

published on 20 May 2013. The main proposals in relation to higher education were set 

out in the latter, which is currently under consultation until 29 July 2013.  The Further & 

Higher Education (Governance and Information) (Wales) Bill primarily set out proposals in 

relation to Further Education.  Two provisions in particular, however, were of relevance to 

higher education: Section 7 (deregulation of student numbers) and Section 9 (information 

supply).  HEW’s comments accordingly focus on these two provisions and the more 

general implications for higher education arising from these proposals. 

 

3. Deregulation of HE student numbers in FEIs 

 

3.1 Section 7 removes the Welsh Government’s power to prohibit the provision of higher 

education courses and regulate HE student numbers in the FE sector. 

 

3.2 Four Further Education Institutions (FEIs) currently receive direct funding from the Higher 

Education Funding Council for Wales (HEFCW).  This is mostly for part-time 

undergraduate provision, equivalent to around 180 full-time students in total (21,647 

funded credits for 2013/14).  One FEI provides a very small amount of directly funded 

part-time postgraduate taught provision, approximating to 2 full-time equivalent students 

Eitem 3

Tudalen 4



                                                                         

2 

 

(270 credits).1  Full-time undergraduate provision in FEIs accounts for less than 1% of 

total full-time undergraduate provision in Wales, based on the maximum fee grant 

allocations.2  Arrangements for direct funding appear to be largely historical, with two 

Colleges directly funded since before HEFCW’s establishment in 1992, or stemming from 

two phases of an initiative in 1997 and 1999 for a small expansion in directly funded 

provision at FEIs.3 Under direct funding, the students concerned are enrolled as students 

of the FEI. The FEI receives funded credits and associated funding directly from HEFCW 

and returns funding and enrolment data directly to HEFCW.  

 
3.3 The majority of HE provision in FE, however, is currently delivered through part-time 

franchise arrangements: in 2013/14 universities franchised out 168,808 credits, 

approximating to 1,407 full-time equivalent students.4 Under these arrangements, the 

student enrolments remain the responsibility of the university (the ‘franchisor’) and are 

regarded as such by HEFCW for purposes of funding arrangements and controls.  The 

KPMG report on higher education provision in further education colleges in Wales 

commissioned by HEFCW in 2003/04 recommended that future expansion of HE in FE 

should be undertaken through franchising from HEIs because of the level of support 

which the HEI could provide to the FEC and the benefits to the student in terms of access 

to the facilities of the HEI and potential progression arrangements. HEFCW consequently 

confirmed that any future development of HE in FE provision would take place through 

the franchise route, rather than any expansion of directly-funded provision (Circular 

W04/61HE). 5 

 
3.4 In practice, we recognise that the expansion of HE student numbers in FEIs are subject to 

a number of constraints in addition to the Welsh Government’s powers under s.139 of the 

Education Act 2002:  

• Funding/maximum fee grant allocations.  HEIs and directly funded FEIs are both 

currently subject to HEFCW’s restrictions on full-time recruitment/maximum fee 

grant.6  Part-time undergraduate enrolments in Wales are not currently subject to 

a cap, and continue to be supported by direct grant from HEFCW.  These currently 

rely on implementation primarily through HEFCW’s conditions of grant.  

                                                 

1
 HEFCW Circular W13/09HE HEFCW’s Funding Allocations 2013/14, Table B2.   

2
 HEFCW Circular W13/09HE HEFCW’s Funding Allocations 2013/14, Table 9. 

3
 HEFCW ‘Guidance on partnership arrangements between higher and further education institutions’, April 

2006, para. 1.5. 
4
 HEFCW Circular W13/09HE HEFCW’s Funding Allocations 2013/14. 

5
 HEFCW ‘Guidance on partnership arrangements between higher and further education institutions’, April 

2006, para. 1.6. 
6
 See HEFCW Circular W12/38HE Maximum fee grant arrangements 2013/14 and W13/09HE HEFCW’s 

Funding Allocations 2013/14.     

Tudalen 5



                                                                         

3 

 

• Fee plan arrangements.  FEIs and HEIs are subject to fee planning legislation, 

which means that they must have an approved fee plan in place in order to set 

higher fee levels7. 

• Degree Awarding Powers.  Currently no FEI in Wales has its own degree 

awarding powers.  

• Designation of courses for statutory student support.   At present, publicly funded 

institutions (including both HEIs and FEIs) are automatically designated whereas 

courses from alternative providers are approved on case by case basis.8  

• Partnership arrangements.  As part of the HEFCW’s HE in FE initiative in the 

1990s referred to in 3.2 above, the FEIs receiving funding were expected to 

establish a compact arrangement with an HEI for each course to cover the quality 

assurance arrangements and other support services which the HEI would 

provide.9  

• Quality assurance arrangements. Within the Quality Assurance Agency's (QAA's) 

Institutional Review process, which is part of the Quality Assurance and Standards 

Framework for Wales, the Council's expectation is that academic standards and 

quality assurance for all directly-funded provision will be covered by a partnership 

with an HEI.10  The awarding function and associated quality assurance 

arrangements would normally be provided by the HEI, as a service for which the 

FEI pays.11  

 

3.5 In future we would expect there to continue to be effective controls in place for all 

providers of HE (including HEIs, FEIs, and alternative providers) to ensure that Welsh 

Government budget can be suitably managed and that public funding is used 

appropriately.  We continue to support the current policy that any future expansion of HE 

in FE would be best achieved through franchise partnerships, for the reasons identified by 

HEFCW (see above 3.3).  In removing the Welsh Government’s powers under the 

Education Act 2002, we recognise that there is in practice a range of controls on future 

expansion of HE in FE.  As part of the consultation on HE (Wales) Bill consultation, it will 

be necessary to ensure that appropriate future arrangements for all providers continue to 

remain in place. 

 

 

                                                 

7
 HEFCW Circular W13/09HE HEFCW’s Funding Allocations 2013/14. 

8
 Welsh Government Consultation Document ‘Higher Education (Wales) Bill’, para 

9
 HEFCW ‘Guidance on partnership arrangements between higher and further education institutions’, April 

2006, para. 1.7 
10
 HEFCW ‘Guidance on partnership arrangements between higher and further education institutions’, April 

2006, para. 1.7. 
11
 HEFCW ‘Guidance on partnership arrangements between higher and further education institutions’, April 

2006, para. 13.1 

Tudalen 6



                                                                         

4 

 

 

4. Supply of information in connection with student loans and grants 

 

4.1 Section 9 of the Bill, which relates to both FE and HE, allows data relevant to student 

grants and loans to be shared by Her Majesty’s Revenue & Customs (HMRC), with the 

Welsh Ministers and anyone they delegate or to whom they transfer their functions.  Our 

members have raised no concerns with this provision. 

 

5. General 

 

5.1 HEW recognises and supports the main driving principle behind the proposals for 

deregulation of Further Education institutions to allow greater autonomy in the sector and 

ensure that, for purposes of public accounting, they are not regarded as central 

government. Our members have not raised any concerns with us regarding the general 

principles which drive the current proposals in relation to Further Education.   

 

Higher Education Wales 

May 2013 

Tudalen 7



Children and Young People Committee 
Further Education and Higher Education (Governance and Information (Wales)Bill 
FEHE 4A - University and College Union (UCU Wales) - Additional EvidenceEitem 4

Tudalen 8



Tudalen 9



Tudalen 10



Tudalen 11



Tudalen 12



Tudalen 13



Tudalen 14



Tudalen 15



Tudalen 16



Tudalen 17



Tudalen 18



Tudalen 19



Children and Young People Committee 
Further Education and Higher Education (Governance and Information (Wales)Bill 
FEHE 4B- University and College Union (UCU Wales) - Additional Evidence

Tudalen 20



Tudalen 21



Leighton Andrews AC / AM
Y Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau
Minister for Education and Skills

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay

Caerdydd • Cardiff

CF99 1NA

English Enquiry Line  0845 010 3300

Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg  0845 010 4400

                Correspondence.Leighton.Andrews@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%)                            Printed on 100% recycled paper

Ein cyf/Our ref: LF/LA/0461/13

Ann Jones AM
Committee Chair 
Children and Young People 
Committee
Cardiff Bay
Cardiff CF99 1NA

Dear Ann,

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE COMMITTEE - STAGE 1 SCRUTINY OF THE
FURTHER AND HIGHER EDUCATION (GOVERNANCE AND INFORMATION) (WALES) 
BILL

Following my attendance at the Committee meeting on 15 May 2013 for the scrutiny of the 
Further and Higher Education (Governance and Information (Wales) Bill, I agreed to provide 
Members with further details on:

• paragraph 98 of the Explanatory Memorandum regarding the identified risks 
regarding FE staff conditions,

• whether the data sharing link with the HMRC will make it easier to chase student 
debts

Members have also asked for a fuller explanation of the reasoning behind why a duty to 
appoint students and staff to a governing body does not risk the ONS reversing their 
categorisation but a duty to consult may.

1. Explanatory Memorandum –  Transcript paragraphs [146 – 149]

In response to the question raised by Bethan Jenkins AM, I have reviewed paragraph 98 of 
the Explanatory Memorandum, I have concluded that the provisions are sufficient. The 
issues to which the member referred are outside the scope of the Bill and I do not therefore 
need to amend the memorandum.

 4 June 2013

Tudalen 22



2. HMRC data sharing link and Student Debt  - Transcript paragraphs [175 – 188]

With regard to Simon Thomas AM’s question on recovering student debt; the data link will 
only be used for the designated function of checking the sponsors’ income, and this is set 
out in the Memorandum of Understanding between the Student Loans Company (SLC) and 
the HMRC. The SLC have existing procedures in place for the recovery of student debt 
using National Insurance Number verification checks with the Department for Work and 
Pensions prior to agreeing the funding with the student. The HMRC VHI link has no bearing 
at all on the ease of repayment.

3. Further explanation on duty to appoint students and staff to the governing body and duty 
to consult against the ONS criteria.

The proposal to omit section 22 of FETA 2007 is a policy decision and seeks to remove 
from the statute book a provision that has never been commenced and is not considered to 
be necessary.

Paragraph 4(c) of Schedule 2 of the Bill omits section 22 of the Further Education and 
Training Act 2007 (FETA 2007). The effect of section 22 of FETA 2007 is to insert a new 
section 49A into the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 (FHEA 1992).  However, 
section 22 of FETA 2007 has not been brought into force in Wales and consequently 
section 49A has not been inserted into the FHEA 1992 and has no effect so far as it relates 
to Wales. 

It is considered that the existing arrangements, to ensure that the interests of business and 
learners are identified and provided for by the further education sector in Wales, are working 
without the need for statutory provisions set out in FETA 2007. 

It is essential that the Welsh Government continues to promote and to add value to existing 
mechanisms for employers; and raise the quality and volume of training. 

For example, the Sector Priorities Fund Pilot (SPFP) Programme, which commenced in 
summer 2010, allows sector based projects to be piloted and tested where there is a clear 
employer need and enabling the Welsh Government to meet specific employer demand, 
target areas of training and qualifications, and test new forms of delivery. We can thereby 
provide feedback on the responsiveness of FE to this employer demand. As part of the
programme, an 'Advocate Service' aims to ensure the provision of skills/ training is meeting 
employer need across Wales in a flexible, effective way.

In addition, the Employer Engagement Team within DfES leads on overall employer 
engagement - meeting regularly with representative organisations such as CBI, FSB etc as 
well as having strong relationship management arrangements in place with Anchor 
Companies, Regionally important businesses, etc.

Finally, there are Ministerial meetings with ColegauCymru which provide input on how they 
have addressed employer need.

On the matter of protecting learner and staff places on governing bodies, I believe these 
appointments are crucial to reflect the college populations and ensure learner and staff 

Tudalen 23



involvement in the governance of a college.   The Education Act 2011 includes this latter 
provision, which did not prevent FEIs in England from being reclassified as NPISH.

I would also like to confirm that I am content with the draft of the transcript of the Children 
Young People Committee meeting on 15 may 2013.

I trust that Members will find the clarification helpful and I look forward to providing further 
evidence to the Committee on 19 June.

Leighton Andrews AC / AM
Y Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau
Minister for Education and Skills

Tudalen 24


	Agenda
	2 Y Bil Addysg Bellach ac Uwch (Llywodraethu a Gwybodaeth) (Cymru): Cyfnod 1 Œ Sesiwn dystiolaeth 6
	3 Y Bil Addysg Bellach ac Uwch (Llywodraethu a Gwybodaeth) (Cymru): Cyfnod 1 Œ Sesiwn dystiolaeth 7
	4 Papurau i'w nodi
	CYP(4)-18-13 (p5) - Barn bellach (Gwybodaeth ychwanegol - UCU)
	CYP(4)-18-13 (p6) - Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau, Llywodraeth Cymru


